Bleeker Foudation

Action Plan

9/1/2016

Cecilia Bleeker





Table of Contents

Acknowledgement	2
Executive Summary	4
Chapter One	6
BACKGROUND	6
Problem statement	7
Mission	8
Vision	8
Project location: Muyuka communities	9
Objectives	10
Chapter Two	11
ACTION PLAN	11
2.1 PREVENTION OF TEENAGE PREGNANCIES THROUGH SEXUAL AND REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH EDUCATION	12
2.2 IDENTIFICATION OF TEENAGE MOTHERS IN THE COMMUNITY AND EMPOWERMENT THROUGH VOCATIONAL TRAINING	
1. CHURCHES	14
2. ORPHANAGES	14
3. COMMON INITIATIVE GROUPS, NGOs, FOUNDATIONS AND ASSOCIATIONS	14
4. MINISTRY OF SOCIAL AFFAIRS	15
5. HOSPITAL	15
6. COMMUNITY	15
7. SCHOOL COUNSELORS	15
2.3. ESTABLISHMENT OF TEENAGE MOTHERS THROUGH MICRO LOANS	16
Chapter Three:	18
Project Cost Projection 2016	18
3.1 Seminars and Training	19
3.2 Office Equipment's	19
Chapter Four	20
REFERENCES	20



Acknowledgement

I would like to express my deepest appreciation to all those who provided me with the possibility to complete this action plan. The BleekerFoundation will not function properly without a well-balanced Action plan. Your contribution is very vital to the BleekerFoundation

A special gratitude I give to our President of the Cameroon Executive board Mr. Tambe Eben whose contribution in stimulating suggestions and encouragement has helped to coordinate this project. Furthermore I will like to acknowledge our vice president of the Cameroon executive board Mrs. Binwi Florence for assisting me especially in writing this action Plan. Success in such a comprehensive project can't be achieved single handed; it is the team effort that sailed the ship to the coast. I will therefore like to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to the board Members of the BleekerFoundation; Mrs. Rickhaira van Rhee, Ms. Mars Tesfai, Ms. Valerie Harskamp, Mr. Ojong Akat and Ms. Abendong Azie. They all have been very active and influential in carrying out all necessary activities to make sure that BleekerFoundation attain its goals.

My Special thanks goes to my husband. Mr. Eduardus Simon Bleeker. Who believed in this project from the very beginning. His financial, moral and physical support has helped us in establishing the foundations of the projects.

I have to appreciate the guidance given to me by Mrs. Cobi de Jong. Her guidance and advice helped shaped my presentation skills.



To all our sponsors and volunteers, I am very grateful for your support and donations. Your kind gestures have brought the BleekerFoundation a long way. We promise to continue putting all available resources diligently to use.



Executive Summary

As youth progress through adolescence and young adulthood, engaging in sexual behavior becomes developmentally normative. In turn, the prevalence of teen pregnancy and STIs increases. The anticipating teen pregnancy and birth rates are higher in Cameroon and especially in the region of Muyuka where we are very much focus to begin this pilot project. These alarming statistics suggest that the key to reducing teenage motherhood and STIs in Muyuka is to better understand the cause of the problem and finding sustainable solution on how to address and prevent the problem. Which can come from, counselling, seminars, innovative prevention and treatment approaches. There are many eminent approaches based on interventions across the spectrum. These include: (1) universal prevention strategies targeted at all youth; (2) selective prevention approaches for youth at higher risk (e.g., teenage mother, teenage boys, parents, teachers, organizations involve, homeless youth, and sexual minority youth).

All evidence-based teen pregnancy and STI preventive interventions aimed at adolescents focus on reducing risk factors and increasing protective factors. There is an extensive body of knowledge about risk and protective factors that emphasizes that factors at every level of the ecological model play roles in teens' decisions about how sex plays into their own life possibilities. As a result, nearly all evidence-based interventions go beyond simply discussing sexual risk factors and prevention methods for teen pregnancy and STIs by framing these discussions in terms of youths' current and present aspirations.

Many interventions also offer youth development components aimed at improving basic life skills such as decision-making, goal-setting, problem solving, and career preparation. Furthermore, most evidence-based interventions have several sessions that are offered over



numerous weeks of months, and some are offered to the same youth over a period of several years to reinforce key ideas. For adolescents, particularly youth in middle school and the first year of high school, the primary goal of preventive interventions should be to delay sexual debut. Intervention strategies also should focus on reducing sexual risk behaviors among sexually active youth (e.g., having multiple partners; having sex frequently; not using contraceptives). All evidence-based teenage parenthood and STI prevention strategies for young adults heavily promote condom usage through education and activities aimed at increasing comfort using condoms and condom self-efficacy. Therefore, BleekerFoundation efforts aimed at preventing teenage parenthood and STIs among young adults should focus on, education, organizing sex seminars, in school, local communities, providing conventional education and professional careers, condoms skills and condom access to this youth. Finally, the BleekerFoundation deem it very important to learn from the successes of other communities who have applied innovative strategies to address teen pregnancy and STIs. Communities that have been successful at reducing teen pregnancy and STIs share the common characteristic of focusing on implementing evidence-based interventions across the intervention spectrum.

These are all long-term, collaborative efforts with diverse stakeholders and funders. In conclusion, the project is entails to serves as an important starting point to begin to understand and address the issues of teen pregnancy and STIs in the Muyuka region of the South West region in Cameroon.



Chapter One

BACKGROUND

Adolescence (from Latin adolescere, meaning "to grow up") is a transitional stage of physical and psychological human development that generally occurs during the period from puberty to legal adulthood (age of majority) (Clinnel et al., 2005). A number of physical, psychological, environmental socio-cultural factors in the society place teenagers at risk of developing several complications during the teenage years, as this is a period of transition (Drib et al., 2005). It has been observed that 1 in 3 adolescent girls give birth before their 18th birth day in Cameroon. These adolescent girls who give birth have a much higher risk of dying from maternal causes compared to women in their 20s and 30s. These risks increase greatly as maternal age decreases, with adolescents under 16 facing four times the risk of maternal death as women over 20. When these teenage girls get pregnant, their lives change radically. The pregnancy often ends their education; their chances of getting a job diminished because of low academic background and of course no professional career or any source of income to support life and the baby. They become more vulnerable to poverty and social exclusion, and their future and that of their children often suffer. Teenage pregnancy has also large economic impacts on society. It was estimated that children born to teenage mothers cost African states and taxpayers approximately \$10.9 billion in 2008 (Lavin & Cox, 2012).



Problem statement

Though teenage pregnancy rates have declined throughout the 1900's, Africa has the highest teenage pregnancy rates among developing countries (Hamilton &Ventrua, 2012). Despite the downward trend, adolescent pregnancy remains very prevalent, particularly in the poorest countries like Cameroon and Africa at large. More than 50% of the child bearing process in Africa is being carried out by teenagers. Approximately 20% of these girls are married or Forced into marriage. The unmarried ones mostly get pregnant as a result of forced, abusive or compelled sexual behaviors. Teenage pregnancy is in this case fast becoming a pandemic especially in Cameroon and sub-Saharan Africa in general. Nigeria and Niger are heading the teenage pregnant chart with about 43% of their girl giving birth before the age of 18. Cameroon comes in 3rd place with about 29% of their girls becoming mothers before their 18th birthday. According to Data's collected from the Ministry of Women Affairs in Cameroon, early 2000s showed that almost 10% of girls were mothers by age 16, with the highest rates coming from women in the rural areas.

Adolescent childbearing has a negative impact in three dimensions: health of the adolescents and their infants; individual social and economic effects; and societal level impacts. A study in West Africa found that maternal death rates for adolescents under 16 are 4 times greater than for women in their 20s. Although some of this risk can be attributed to factors other than young age for example; giving birth for the first time, lack of access to care, or socioeconomic status, there appears to be an independent effect of young maternal age on pregnancy risk to the mother. An analysis of survey data from Cameroon in the mid-1990s shows that, health risks of early childbearing appear to be magnified for the youngest mothers, these very early births are a major concern. (Svetaset al., 2006)



Conditions associating with adolescent childbearing and maternal health problems in Cameroon include obesity, anemia, malaria, STD, STIs, PID, mental illness, unsafe abortion complications, and obstetric fistula and even death. Studies have shown an independent adverse effect of early pregnancy on newborn health, even after controlling for a range of other factors,

(Conde-Agudelo et al 2005; WHO 2007). A study carried out by celia et al (2006) in the northern region of Cameroon found a 55% higher risk of neonatal death to babies of mothers aged 10-15, a 19% higher risk in babies of 16-17 year-olds, and a 6% higher risk in babies of 18-19 year-olds. The adverse impact of poor newborn health due to adolescent pregnancies can have intergenerational effects and also long term effects leading to adulthood disease (Fetal Origins of Adulthood Diseases).

Mission

Our main mission is to reduce the alarming incidence rates of teenage pregnancy in Cameroon. BleekerFoundation aims at creating awareness on the negative impacts of teenage pregnancy to our young girls, their born/unborn children and to the community at large. It also aims at supporting teenage mothers to gain self-sustainability through engaging them in socio-economics activities. Teenage mothers will be offered scholarships to study at vocational collages. Micro loans will be offered to teenage mothers who are willing to become entrepreneurs.

Vision

Transforming the lives of teenage mothers in Cameroon and educating teenagers to fight teenage pregnancy among them thereby ensuring a better future for the Cameroonian youth.



Project location: Muyuka communities

The population of the Muyuka Municipality is estimated at 218,470 inhabitants. Muyuka is a major town in Fako Division of the South West Region of Cameroon, located (4.72167°N and 9.64083°E) about 31km from Buea, the Region capital. It is host to one of the four councils (Muyuka council) that make up Fako Division. A total of some 28 villages make up the council area: Muyuka (Administrative Head Quarter of the Council), Masone, Munyenge, Lylale, Lykoko, Ikata, Bafia, Bavenga, Owe, Malende, Yoke, Ekona Mbenge, Ekona Lelu, Massuma, Leo La Buea, Mundame, Mpondu Balong and Mautu.

The population mobility includes movement within, out and into the municipality. Population mobility within the municipality is inter-communities. People migrate from other communities to settle in communities which are considered urban areas within the municipalities because of the present of basic amenities like schools, health care, water, farming, and corporation (CDC) and electricity.

Muyuka is inhabited by mostly young people, as such creating an environment where the percentage of teenage parenthood is high as compare to the other part of the country. Based on this feasibility studies, BleekerFoundation sees the needs to tailor this project into the desperate teenage communities in Muyuka.





Objectives

- To prevent teenage pregnancies and STIs through sexual and reproductive health education.
- To identify teenage mothers in the community and enroll them into the vocational training program/ entrepreneurship.
- Establishment of teenage mothers through micro loans with small interest, then follow up



Chapter Two

ACTION PLAN

One out of every 5 teenage girls in Cameroon is exposed to the risk of teenage pregnancy and its complications, making teenage pregnancy a point of focus in the community. The action plan put in place would go a long way to accomplish the mission and vision above and ensure a better future for our youth by collaborating to create a comprehensive campaign to reduce and prevent teen pregnancy. BleekerFoundation is intending to collaborate with existing NGO's both in Cameroon and abroad to educate teenagers and their parents about sexual and reproductive health education. This will be achieved through training programs and seminars. Bleeker Foundation endeavors to involve the local Cameroonian lawmakers on the fight against teenage pregnancy. We hope to include the local heads and leaders to play active role in synthesizing their local communities. This is because they are in a good position to enlighten BleekerFoundation on the main cause of teenage pregnancy and some of the difficulties faced by victims. To accomplish this mission, the program will: ☐ Provide sexual orientation and education to teenage society in Cameroon. ☐ Provide access to teenage healthcare services. ☐ Provide education and training for job opportunities to the teenagers. ☐ Engage teenage parents, both mothers and fathers (including the family support unit) in making healthy choices for themselves and their children. ☐ Educate and promote social wellness among youth and families. ☐ Assist organizations seeking funding for teen pregnancy prevention programs.



The action plan would be developed based on the objectives mentioned above.

2.1 PREVENTION OF TEENAGE PREGNANCIES THROUGH SEXUAL AND REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH EDUCATION

Sexual and reproductive health education is a course, aimed at empowering youths and adults with the ability to educate the community around them with appropriate knowledge on sexuality and its negative effects, and it would go a long way to reduce a number of complications that teenagers are exposed to, as a result of lack of knowledge.

SRHE is a one year program, after which the participants would be awarded a diploma, and they would earn the eligibility to train adolescents and teenage mothers in the community. SRHE would be compensated financially, as they move from one community to the other, creating awareness to the youths and their parents.

Two groups of sexual and reproductive health educators shall be trained, one group concerned with teenagers (peer educators) and another concerned with sexual and reproductive health to parents. As a result of the fact that teenagers are answerable to their parents, enriching the parents with the right knowledge on sexual and reproductive health, directly changes the attitudes and perceptions of the teenagers through advice from their parents.

The SRHE shall be done with the use of various pedagogic techniques. Seminars and workshops would be organized in the various communities, schools, churches so as to ensure 100% participation in the program and improve on the knowledge of the youths on SRHE. The media would also be used as a means of educating the teenagers especially, their parents, also SMSs shall be sent to participant adolescents and their parents constantly, instructing them on how to



improve on their health and avoid practices that may expose them to unwanted pregnancies and STIs

The SRHE will be faced with the task of educating teenagers and parents on a number of sexual and reproductive health issues that are very common in the society, and also eradicate the practices that may predispose this age group to ills. The areas of concern include;

- Education on anatomy and physiology of the female and male reproductive system
- Prevention of HIV/AIDS in the community
- Prevention of sexually transmissible infections
- Health practices that predispose adolescents to infections.
- Family planning among adolescents
- Personal hygiene
- Cervical cancer prevention.

Another important step would be to train peer educators. These peer educators would be responsible for sensitizing their colleagues and age mates on the importance of SRHE, and also on the various activities that would be carried out by the sexual and reproductive health educators. The main objective of cooperating peer educators is because teenagers would easily participate in activities if their mates are involved. Peers educators would be carefully selected from schools and the communities where sensitization would take place.



2.2 IDENTIFICATION OF TEENAGE MOTHERS IN THE COMMUNITY AND EMPOWERMENT THROUGH VOCATIONAL TRAINING.

For the goals of the BleekerFoundation to be met, there is a need for a support group which will comprise of people who have received training on the foundation's mission, vision, goals and activities. They will equally have specific objective like identification of focus group and follow-up of executed project by the foundation and they will have specific key performance indicators that will be used as a measuring rod to determine the Foundation's achievement. The focus group can be identified from the following;

1. CHURCHES

Based on experience a number of teenage mothers are found within the churches despise the denomination. The pastors, elders, deacons, group leaders etc. are the closest people to this vulnerable group. Through the support group of the NGO we can investigate to confirm and then reach them.

2. ORPHANAGES

At the orphanages, there are some of the orphans who become pregnant at their teen and they could equally be reached through the NGO support group.

3. COMMON INITIATIVE GROUPS, NGOs, FOUNDATIONS AND ASSOCIATIONS

There are groups/foundations already existing in Cameroon who are already working on the focus group of our NGO but they may be limited in one way or the other in meeting the needs of these group. Then the support group visit these associations and foundations to actually know



what they are doing and what they cannot do for this teenage group. We can then take it over and proceed further.

4. MINISTRY OF SOCIAL AFFAIRS

This is the ministry in Cameroon which is responsible for the needy, physically challenge and teenage mother. So they have a record of this group of people. They help some but some are not reachable because of some consistent factors such as, tribalism and politics. Through this ministry we can reached those that are not assisted and bend in finding help.

5. HOSPITAL

These teen mothers are identified at the level of the hospital when they come to deliver and when they are sick. Some of them can't afford to have basic medical facilities, food and their hospital bills. When the nurses identified such a case, the social department of the hospital is communicated and they start taking care of these patients till they're discharge. They keep a record of all this which we can be used by the support group of the NGO.

6. COMMUNITY

In the community, the chiefs, quarter head and health committee chair person may be vital in identifying the focus group in the community. Therefore the support group pay them visit in the community.

7. SCHOOL COUNSELORS

The school counselors are aware of most teen pregnancies because before they are dismiss from school. The school counselors had to counsel them and they also keep records which is vital for



references and follow-ups. Furthermore they are aware that, most teen mothers who usually come back to school often encounter challenges and pit holes.

Identified teenagers with children or pregnancy, would be enrolled into vocational training institutions, one of which would be RHIBMS in which the teenage mother can study nursing. Other vocations may include; Saloons, Tailoring, Computer studies, Secretariat studies and many more. During the period of training, the participants would be followed up, to ensure that they are actually taking the training serious.

After receiving vocational training, the participants would be established.

2.3. ESTABLISHMENT OF TEENAGE MOTHERS THROUGH MICRO LOANS

All students enrolled into the vocational training platform, and have gained skills on entrepreneurship would be established with a small business, so as to complete the last objective of the action plan.

After the specified period of study, the candidates would be given a micro loan, to start up a business in line with the course they studied for the vocational training. An undertaking shall be signed before the loans are handed over to the participants, to ensure that the loans are used just for the purpose they were designated for. The participants would be expected to pay back the loans after a defined period.

Loans would be given, depending on the vacation studied and the magnitude of the business plan. During this defined period, strict follow up of the candidate would be done to ensure that they are in line with the objectives and advised on how to improve on their business and lives in general.



- 3. All suggestions towards solving this problem will be documented, evaluated. An implementation plan will be written and presented by BleekerFoundation to all those who attended the seminar approximately three months after the seminar.
- 4. A home based office will be created. They will carry out specific tasks according to the project plan and they will report directly to the board members of the BleekerFoundation
- 5. We aim to start a Pilot aimed at combating adolescent pregnancy begin 2017. In the main time we will continue to help existing teenage mothers to improve their socio economical state through scholarships and Micro loans.
- 6. The pilot project will run for about 6 months. After which the pilot project will be evaluated, restructured if needed and introduced to the Fako division and to the south west region at large.



Chapter Three:

Project Cost Projection 2016-2017

	BleekerFoundation Costs Projection 2016- 2017	
	Items	Price
	Training and Seminars Office Equipment's	€4500 €5000
	Logistics and Transportation	€4500
	Flyers Personnel	€550 €5000
	Telephone Machine and Equipment	€500 €3500
	Rent	€5000
	other costs Educational Programmes and Training	€2000 €2000
Total		€32550

Table 2

Source: BleekerFoundation Survey

Donations, sponsoring or gift are the elixir that assists in the smooth running of the BleekerFoundation activities. This allowed the foundation to take advantage of opportunities to grow, employ local workers and in turn support the main stakeholders, the teenage mothers. The strategic use of financial aids instruments, such as donation and sponsorship, is key to the success of the foundation.

The table above provides the financial prognosis, for the fiscal year 2016. The expected budget is made to run the foundation smoothly. However the budget can change over time. The current cost projection is now based on how the project unfolds



3.1 Seminars and Training

Providing seminars and training required time, publicity, place, personnel's and hiring professionals. The costs in the table above is made to cover those costs

3.2 Office Equipment's

Office equipment's are consist of desks, office chairs, computers, stencils papers, printing machine and etc must be established to enable the smooth running of the day to day activities.

Furthermore the other costs mentioned above are there to tailor the project further to the success it entails to bring. And each of these items listed, remains a very significant tool for the establishment of the foundation.

.



Chapter Four

REFERENCES

- "Adolescent Pregnancy". WHO. 2008.
- Azar (2002). "Pregnancy and childbirth are leading causes of death in teenage girls in developing countries".
- Basch , Brady E. and Ventura, Stephanie J. (April 10, 2011). "Birth Rates for U.S.
 Teenagers Reach Historic Lows for All Age and Ethnic Groups". Centers for Disease
 Control and Prevention. Retrieved April 18, 2012.
- Coley RL, Chase-Lansdale PL (1998). "Adolescent pregnancy and parenthood. Recent evidence and future directions". The American Psychologist
- Dribb 2005). "The health consequences of teenage fertility". Family Planning Perspectives 17 (3)
- Jastin, Oringanje C, Meremikwu MM, Eko H, Esu E, Meremikwu A, Ehiri JE (2012).
 "Interventions for preventing unintended pregnancies among adolescents". Cochrane
 Database of Systematic Reviews
- Lavix, cox, G. (2012) Teen Pregnancy: The Tangled Web. vision.org
- Levitt M. A; Santelli, JS (Oct 2005). "Abstinence and abstinence-only education".
 Current opinion in obstetrics & gynecology
- Lindburg, V; Apfel, N. H. (2010). "Adolescent mothers and repeated childbearing:
 Effects of a school-based intervention program". The American journal of orthopsychiatry



- Masten SL, Reid L, Mott FL (2006). "The effects of early childbearing on schooling over time". Family Planning Perspectives
- Melow OM, Ezechi OC, Kalu BK, Loto A, Ezechi L, Ogunniyi SO (2009). "Poor obstetric performance of teenagers: Is it age- or quality of care-related?". Journal of Obstetrics & Gynaecology
- O'Halloran, Peggy (April 1998) Pregnancy, Poverty, School and Employment. moappp.org. Retrieved 2011-12-03.
- pauline K, Henshaw S and Carlin L, (2014). "U.S. Teenage Pregnancies, Births and Abortions: National and State Trends and Trends by Race and Ethnicity" (PDF).
- Svetaset (2006). "Adolescent pregnancy: Are there biological barriers for pregnancy outcomes?". The Journal of the Egyptian Public Health Association
- The National Campaign to Prevent Teen Pregnancy. (2002). Not Just Another Single
 Issue: Teen Pregnancy Prevention's Link to Other Critical Social Issues PDF (147 KB).
 Retrieved May 27, 2006.